
MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD) 
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Board of Directors  Office      Term Expiration 
 
Butch Gabrielski   President     May 2023 
Wayne Reorda   Secretary/Treasurer   May 2022 
Bill Gessner    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2023 
Mike Fenton    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2023 
Tom Sauer    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2022 
 
DATE: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 
TIME: 10:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Meridian Ranch Recreation Center 
  10301 Angeles Road 
  Peyton, CO  80831 
 
NOTE this meeting will be held in person with current Covid protocols in place. 
 
The Public may participate in person or by following this link : 
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_MzcxNzJkM2QtZTc5OS00NjRlLThjMWItMzhiOWQyYzU0NzI4%40thread.v
2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22ddbf1e07-ec1e-4dc6-8ef3-
1a31c2da785b%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22778ad138-ba67-4d4d-bdb1-39557c30639d%22%7d  
or by telephone by calling +1 872-242-8662 and using Phone Conference ID: 558830152#   
Please comply with the Governor’s Executive Orders and State Public Health Orders. 
 
I.  ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS: 

A. Call to Order 
B. Conflicts of Interest 
C. Approve Agenda 
D. Visitor Comments (Limited to 3 minutes per resident or household) 
E. Review and Approve May 5, 2021 Combined Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

(enclosure) 
 
II.  FINANCIAL ITEMS: 

A. Review and Accept MSMD Cash Position Summary and Unaudited Financial 
Statements (enclosure and/or distributed under separate cover) 

B. Review Tap Fee Report for Information Only (enclosure and/or distributed under 
separate cover) 

C. Review, Ratify and Approve Monthly Payment of Claims (enclosure and/or 
distributed under separate cover) 

D. Receive Finance Committee Report 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 90

admin1
Typewriter
Page 3

admin1
Typewriter
Page 8

admin1
Typewriter
Page 17

admin1
Typewriter
Page 18

admin1
Typewriter
Page 19



Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District (MRMD) 
Meridian Service Metropolitan District (MSMD) 
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District 2018 Subdistrict (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
III.  OPERATIONS & ENGINEERING ITEMS: 

A. Information Items (No Action) 
1. MSMD Operations Reports – Water, Sewer, Parks and Grounds, Recreation 

(enclosure and/or handout) 
2. Manager’s Verbal Report 

B. Action Items 
1. Ratify Construction Services Agreement with Applied Ingenuity for repairs 

related to Well LFH 1, $59,746.00 
2. Ratify Construction Service Agreement with Frazee Construction Co. for 

installation of potable water by-pass line, $32,730.00 
3. Ratify Contract with Western Enterprises, Inc. for Falcon Freedom Days 

Fireworks, $26,250.00 
4. Ratify Change Order No. 3, Hydro Resources-Rocky Mountain Inc, for addition 

of temporary power generation, $43,487.18 

IV.  DEVELOPER ITEMS: 
A. Verbal Report from Construction Manager 

 
V.  DIRECTOR ITEMS: 
  A.    
 
VI.  LEGAL ITEMS: 

A. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b) to receive legal advice 
regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with Cherokee Metropolitan District 

B. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) to continue 
Board discussion regarding potential changes to structure of the District’s employee 
organizational chart.  

 
VII.  Follow Up Action Items: 

A. Consider and authorize President to sign contract for Communication Services. 
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT:   
 

The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for Wednesday, July 7, 2021 at 
10:00 a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road, Peyton, 
Colorado 80831. 

Page 2 of 90

admin1
Typewriter
Page 20

admin1
Typewriter
Page 23

admin1
Typewriter
Page 35

admin1
Typewriter
Page 69

admin1
Typewriter
Page 83

admin1
Typewriter
Page 87



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

1 
 

MINUTES OF THE COMBINED REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD) 
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
 

Held: May 5, 2021, 10:00 a.m., at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 
Angeles Road, Peyton, Colorado 80831 

 
Attendance: The following Directors were in attendance: 
  Butch Gabrielski, President 
  Wayne Reorda, Secretary/Treasurer 
  Bill Gessner, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
    Mike Fenton, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
  Tom Sauer, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 Also present were:  
  Jim Nikkel; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Jennette Coe; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Beth Aldrich; Meridian Service Metro District  
  Braden McCrory; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Ryan Kozlowski; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Bob Blodgett; Community Resource Services (Via Teleconference) 
  Ron Fano; Spencer Fane 
  Jamie Cotter; Spencer Fane (Via Teleconference) 
  Tom Kerby; Tech Builders (Via Teleconference) 
  Raul Guzman; Tech Builders (Via Teleconference) 
  Nancy Loew; Homeowner (Via Teleconference) 

 
Call to Order A quorum of the Board was present, and the Directors confirmed their 

qualification to serve.  The meeting was called to order at 10:03 
 
Disclosure Matter Mr. Fano noted that written disclosures of the interests of all Directors have 

been filed with the Secretary of State. 
 
Approve Agenda The Board reviewed the Agenda.  A motion was made and seconded to approve 

the agenda.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 
 
Visitor Comments Ms. Lowe had concerns regarding the following topics: 

• Well and water production through the summer. 

• Replacing dead foliage and controlling invasive weeds. 

• Repairing the damage to the irrigation system. 

• Maintenance of the pool, keeping it clean and heated. 

• Reinstating social activities at the Recreation Center. 

Page 3 of 90



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

2 
 

 
Approve Minutes The Board reviewed the April 4, 2021 Board Minutes and a motion was made 

and seconded to approve the minutes as presented.  The motion was approved 
by unanimous vote of directors present.   

 
Financial Items Cash Position Summary and Financial Statements:  Ms. Coe reviewed the cash 

position summary and monthly financial reports for March 31, 2021.  A motion 
was made and seconded to accept the cash position summary and financial 
statements as presented.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote of 
directors present. 

 Review 2020 Tap Fee Report:  Ms. Coe reviewed the April 2021 Tap Fee Report 
with the Board for information only.     
Approval of Payment of Claims:  Ms. Coe reviewed the updated claims 
presented for approval at this meeting represented by check numbers: 

MSMD Interim checks for ratification:  13216-13242 totaling $84,030.11  
MSMD: 13243-13281 & 1 ACH totaling $494,227.97 
MRMD: 2266-2271 totaling $2,469.75 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the MSMD payment of claims. 
The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present.  
A motion was made and seconded to approve the MRMD payment of claims. 
The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 

  
Operations &  
Engineering Items  Information Items: 
 MSMD Operations Reports:   

• Mr. McCrory presented the water, sewer, parks and grounds, and 
drainage operation reports which included information from pages 30– 
32 of the Board Packet. 

• Mr. Kozlowski presented the Recreation Center Report to the Board 
which included information from page 33 of the Board Packet.  Mr. 
Kozlowski also noted:   

• A 14-year-old resident stole another resident’s scooter. Mr. 
Kozlowski recommended a suspension. The Board discussed and 
decided on a six-month suspension with the potential to appeal 
at three months. 

 
Managers Verbal Report:  Mr. Nikkel provided status reports on the following 
matters: 

• Basis of Design Report (BDR) for LFH Wells 7, 8 and Latigo LFH 1 was 
submitted to Colorado Department of Health and Environment on April 
30th and receipt of the documents was acknowledged on May 3rd.  
Approval will allow us to proceed with our plan to direct disinfect the 
water from these wells prior to storage and distribution.  Approval will 

Page 4 of 90



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

3 
 

take 3-4 weeks and, in the meantime, we are working on receiving 
proposals for construction of the required interconnect. 

• Approval of the BDR for LFH Well No. 5 has been approved.  Well 5 is 
scheduled for complete start-up tomorrow, May 6th.   

• LFH Well 8 is expected to come online between May 31st and June 7th.  
We are still trying to get confirmation from Mountain View Electric as 
to the completion of their electrical service to the site and have made 
rental agreements and fueling arrangements in the event we need to 
bring in a temporary generator for the site. 

• LFH Well 9 is still anticipated be ready for full start-up by June 22nd. 

• We continue to try and fill positions in both water and wastewater. 

• The technical team met yesterday with Cherokee on the replacement 
plan and how to move that action forward. 

• We are planning to move staff into the former Tech Builders space as 
soon as they move out which could be as soon as tomorrow or Friday 
depending on final inspections.  Braden and Tobi will be occupying 
offices in the new space.  Once moves are complete, we anticipate 
opening the office to the public with a soft opening and then a fully 
announced opening following. 

 
Action Items:  

1. Consider and Adopt Resolution MSMD 21-02, Resolution Amending 
Spending Authorization and Check Signing Policy 
After discussion, the Board decided to table this item to be evaluated 
at a future time.  Mr. Gessner suggested having a Bill.com discussion 
on the agenda every month. 

  
Developer Items Mr. Guzman provided a verbal report to the Board on the status of Meridian 

Ranch development activities.  

• Working on a replat in the Northeast section of the District to increase 
the allowed density. 

• Slowdown in new tap sales. Three builders ran out of lots. 

• Work in Stonebridge slowing down due to an increase in the cost of 
lumber, and weather in Texas affecting prices on concrete and plastics. 

• Working with the County to do the improvements on Eastonville. 

• Extending the four lanes on Meridian past Rex Road and putting in 
traffic lights. 

• Paving on Rex Road delayed due to inclement weather. 
  
Director Items There were none. 
 
  

Page 5 of 90



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

4 
 

Legal Items               Receive legal advice regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District. 
A motion was made seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present to open an Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b) to 
receive legal advice regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District. 

 A motion was made, seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present to close the executive session.  There was no reportable action. 

  
Discussion regarding potential changes to structure of the District’s employee 
organizational chart. 

 A motion was made, seconded, and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present to open an Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) 
to continue Board discussion regarding potential changes to structure of the 
District’s employee organizational chart. 
A motion was made, seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present to close the executive session.  There was no reportable action. 
 
In open session, a motion was made, seconded and following a roll call vote 
was approved by unanimous vote of directors present to establish a Personnel 
Committee consisting of Directors Gessner and Sauer and directed the 
Committee to work with Manager Nikkel on reviewing and improving the 
District’s Organization Chart. 

 
Adjournment There being no further business to come before the Board, the President 

adjourned the meeting at 1:04 PM. 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for June 9, 2021 at 10:00 

a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road, Peyton, 
Colorado 80831.   

 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Secretary for the Meeting  
 
 
 

Page 6 of 90



 

  S P E N C E R  F A N E  L L P  |  1 7 0 0  L I N C O L N  S T  S U I T E  2 0 0 0 ,  D E N V E R ,  C O  8 0 2 0 3 - 4 5 5 4  |  3 0 3 . 8 3 9 . 3 8 0 0  |  F A X  3 0 3 . 8 3 9 . 3 8 3 8  |  s p e n c e r f a n e . c o m    

RON FANO 
DIRECT DIAL: 303-839-3820 

rfano@spencerfane.com 

  

May 6, 2021 

Meridian Service Metropolitan District 
ATTN: Jim Nikkel, General Manager 
11886 Stapleton Drive 
Falcon, CO 80111  

Re: Opinion Concerning Executive Session Held May 5, 2021 

Dear Mr. Nikkel: 

 In my opinion, the executive session concerning the arbitration/post-arbitration matters with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District that occurred during the Board meeting that I attended in person on May 5, 
2021 was properly announced and was a privileged attorney-client communication.  Therefore, no record 
or electronic recording of the executive session was required pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), 
C.R.S. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
SPENCER FANE LLP 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 90



CHECKING

Wells Fargo

Account Activity Item Description

Cash balance at end of period 3,430,135$           

May activity:

Utility billing from residents 498,052                
Recreation Center fees 10,354                  
Tap fees and meter fees (In) 77,585                  
Tap fees transferred to MRMD (Out) (21,000)                 
El Paso County Collection of Deliquent Accounts 1,549                    
Hydrant Deposits 1,000                    
Transfer from Meridian Ranch - CTF -                        
AT&T, Falcon Freedom Days and reimbursements 11,808                  
Coronavirus Relief Fund Reimbursement 272                       
Payroll (137,279)               

May checks and automatic payments
Operations incl. interim checks (583,629)               
Interest, fees and returned checks (471)                      

    Sub-total 3,288,375             

June 7th payment Estimate (307,000)               

Adjusted balance 2,981,375$           

Restricted Funds to transfer:
Conservation Trust Funds -                        
5% Reserve Fund (47,084)                 
Sewer Reserve Fund (5,972)                   
Capital Project Funds (1,879,400)            
Rate Stabilization Fund 5,416                    

Adjusted Unrestricted Balance 1,054,335$           

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

CASH POSITION SUMMARY

For the Period Ended April 30, 2021

Adjusted as of May 31, 2021

Management Purposes Only

Page 8 of 90



Checking Payroll Conservation Sewer Capital Capital Project

Rate 

Stabilization TOTAL ALL

Wells Fargo Wells Fargo Petty Cash Trust Funds 5% Reserve Reserve ($2) Improvements Funds Funds ACCOUNTS

Account Activity Item Description

Cash balance at end of period 3,430,134.91   -                  406                  11,823             1,673,800        349,846           -                  4,222,681        683,778           10,372,470    

May activity:

Utility billing from residents 498,052             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    498,052             
Recreation Center fees 10,354               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    10,354               
Tap fees and meter fees (In) 77,585               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    77,585               
Tap fees transferred to MRMD (Out) (21,000)             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (21,000)             
El Paso County Collection of Deliquent Accounts 1,549                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,549                
Hydrant Deposits 1,000                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,000                
Transfer from Meridian Ranch - CTF -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
AT&T, Falcon Freedom Days and reimbursements 11,808               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    11,808               

Coronavirus Relief Fund Reimbursement 272                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    272                   
Payroll (137,279)           (137,279)           

-                    
May checks and automatic payments -                    

Operations incl. interim checks (583,629)           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (583,629)           
Interest, fees and returned checks (471)                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (471)                  

    Sub-total 3,288,375          -                    406                   11,823               1,673,800          349,846             -                    4,222,681          683,778             10,230,710        

June 7th payment Estimate (307,000)           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (307,000)           

Adjusted balance 2,981,375          -                    406                   11,823               1,673,800          349,846             -                    4,222,681          683,778             9,923,710          

Less restricted funds as of May 31, 2021:

Petty Cash -                    -                    (406)                  -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (406)                  

Conservation Trust Funds -                    -                    -                    (11,823)             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (11,823)             
5% Reserve Fund (47,084)             -                    -                    -                    (1,673,800)        -                    -                    -                    -                    (1,720,884)        
Sewer Reserve Fund (5,972)               -                    -                    -                    -                    (349,846)           -                    -                    -                    (355,818)           
Capital Project Funds (1,879,400)        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (4,222,681)        -                    (6,102,081)        
Rate Stabilization Fund 5,416                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (683,778)           (678,362)           

Unrestricted cash balance 1,054,335$      -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                1,054,335$      

Note: Additional investment accounts can be used for extraordinary expenditures.

ColoTrust Plus

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

CASH POSITION RECONCILED TO GENERAL LEDGER

For the Period Ended April 30, 2021

Adjusted as of May 31, 2021

INVESTMENTS

CASH POSITION SUMMARY

Management Purposes Only Page 9 of 90



 Month of 

Apr 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 2021 

Budget 

 Variance Over 

(Under) Budget 

% of Budget 

(33.3% YTD)

REVENUES

General Revenue - Fund 10 $262,769     $272,646          $286,910        ($14,264)          95.0%

Parks/Grounds Revenue - Fund 15 90,871          361,308            1,107,175       (745,867)          32.6%

Rec Center Revenue - Fund 16 159,116       618,111            1,889,250       (1,271,139)      32.7%

Water Revenue - Fund 40 199,267       800,837            3,150,000       (2,349,163)      25.4%

Sewer Revenue - Fund 50 143,230       566,991            3,107,525       (2,540,534)      18.2%

Billing Fees 3,675            12,357              71,400             (59,043)            17.3%

Grant Revenue -                11,788              35,000             (23,212)            33.7%

Interest Income 319               1,637                -                   1,637                - 

Miscellaneous Income -                14,711              -                   14,711              - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 859,247       2,660,387        9,647,260       (6,986,873)      27.6%

EXPENSES

Capital Expenses

Capital Expense - Other 5,482            90,478              1,630,000       (1,539,522)      5.6%

Capital Expense P&G Fund 15 -                -                    300,000           (300,000)           - 

Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16 -                -                    350,000           (350,000)           - 

Capital Expense Water Fund 40 228,392       2,304,436        6,115,000       (3,810,564)      37.7%

Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50 26,857          789,538            1,295,000       (505,462)          61.0%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -                70,629              131,900           (61,271)            53.5%

Developer Reimbursements -                -                    750,000           (750,000)           - 

   TOTAL Capital Expenses 260,730       3,255,082        10,571,900     (7,316,818)      30.8%

Total Fund & General Expenses

General & Admin. Expense 117,800       586,416            805,015           (218,599)          72.8%

Personnel Expenses 162,369       562,175            2,365,640       (1,803,465)      23.8%

Parks/Grounds Expense - Fund 15 15,575          47,513              427,500           (379,987)          11.1%

MRRC Expense - Fund 16 16,056          87,708              390,000           (302,292)          22.5%

Water Expense - Fund 40 60,023          97,778              508,010           (410,232)          19.2%

Sewer Expense - Fund 50 58,459          158,746            696,300           (537,554)          22.8%

General Operating Expenses 73,571          328,564            1,063,733       (735,169)          30.9%

TABOR Emergency Reserve 3% -                -                    8,610               (8,610)               - 

   TOTAL Total Fund & General Expenses 503,853       1,868,902        6,264,808       (4,395,906)      29.8%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 764,584       5,123,984        16,836,708     (11,712,724)    30.4%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 94,663          (2,463,597)       (7,189,448)      4,725,851        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap Fees Received 180,000       1,231,000        3,500,000       (2,269,000)      35.2%

Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (180,000)      (738,000)          (3,500,000)      2,762,000        21.1%

Transfer from (to) MRMD -                -                    750,000           (750,000)           - 

Transfer from (to) Other Funds (47,640)        (190,366)          (572,048)         381,682           33.3%

Emergency Reserve (5%) 47,084          188,334            565,000           (376,666)          33.3%

Emergency Reserve ($2) - Sewer 5,972            23,698              72,048             (48,350)            32.9%

Rate Stabilization Reserve (5,416)          (21,666)             (65,000)           43,334             33.3%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                493,000            750,000           (257,000)          65.7%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $94,663       ($1,970,597)     ($6,439,448)    $4,468,851      

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 12,463,790      

ENDING FUND BALANCE $10,493,193    

Operating Capital Fund Balance 7,740,388        

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 1,720,473        

Sewer Reserve Fund Balance $2 353,998            

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 678,334            

Total Fund Balance $10,493,193    

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS

For the One Month and Four Months Ended April 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 10 of 90



 Month of 

Apr 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance 

Over (Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(33.3% YTD)

REVENUES

IGA - Meridian Ranch $260,000    $260,000    $260,000    -               100.0%

AT&T Lease 1,445           5,778           18,310         (12,532)        31.6%

Newsletter Contrib. 320              1,760           4,800           (3,040)          36.7%

MSMD Office Sub-Lease 1,005           5,108           3,800           1,308           134.4%

Interest Income 75                 411              -               411               - 

Miscellaneous Income -               163              -               163               - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 262,844       273,221       286,910       (13,689)       95.2%

EXPENSES

Accounting -               273              1,100           (827)             24.8%

Audit -               -               14,500         (14,500)         - 

Payroll & HR Services 3,549           11,510         43,800         (32,290)        26.3%

Engineering/Consulting 147              498              700              (202)             71.1%

Legal 7,200           27,505         30,000         (2,495)          91.7%

Personnel Expenses 2,331           6,914           35,215         (28,301)        19.6%

Copier - Contract Expenses 441              1,165           6,605           (5,440)          17.6%

IT/Computer/Software 488              1,323           10,000         (8,677)          13.2%

Rent - Shared 3,549           14,198         75,000         (60,802)        18.9%

Telephone & Internet 64                 330              700              (370)             47.1%

Telephone & Internet - Shared 754              2,980           7,725           (4,745)          38.6%

Utilities - Shared 468              2,355           6,695           (4,340)          35.2%

Supplies 321              1,276           3,100           (1,824)          41.2%

Licenses,Certs & Memberships -               497              1,000           (503)             49.7%

Subscriptions 30                 55                 700              (645)             7.9%

Public Information -               -               500              (500)              - 

Meals & Entertainment 620              848              200              648              424.0%

Miscellaneous Expense (23)               315              1,000           (685)             31.5%

COVID Expense -               (160)             3,200           (3,360)          

Insurance 392              1,581           3,500           (1,919)          45.2%

Customer Refunds Tracking 186              186              -               186               - 

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 364              953              3,000           (2,047)          31.8%

TABOR Emergency Reserve 3% -               -               8,610           (8,610)           - 

   TOTAL EXPENSES 20,914         74,740         257,350       (182,610)     29.0%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $241,930    $198,481    $29,560       $168,921    

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 66,441         

ENDING FUND BALANCE $264,922    

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

General Fund

For the One Month and Four Months Ended April 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 11 of 90



 Month of 

Apr 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance 

Over 

(Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(33.3% YTD)

REVENUES

Parks & Grounds Fees $76,097       $302,732     $927,150     ($624,418)   32.7%

Street Lighting Fees 14,773         58,575         180,025       (121,450)      32.5%

Billing Fees 919               3,089           17,850         (14,761)        17.3%

Grant Revenue -                11,788         35,000         (23,212)        33.7%

Interest Income 2                   35                 -                35                  - 

Miscellaneous Income -                1,817           -                1,817            - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 91,791         378,037       1,160,025   (781,988)     32.6%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -                1,036           4,550           (3,514)          22.8%

Customer Billing Services 1,789           6,283           11,040         (4,757)          56.9%

Engineering/Consulting 556               1,886           3,500           (1,614)          53.9%

Legal -                117               2,500           (2,383)          4.7%

Personnel Expenses 12,701         40,674         246,875       (206,201)      16.5%

General Operations - Admin 3,437           6,729           9,900           (3,171)          68.0%

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 18,482         56,726         278,365       (221,639)     20.4%

Operating Expense

Landscape Repair & Maint. 15,281         45,633         364,500       (318,867)      12.5%

Hardscape Repair & Maint. -                -                21,000         (21,000)         - 

Park Maint. 294               1,721           27,000         (25,279)        6.4%

Pond Maint. -                159               15,000         (14,841)        1.1%

Utilities 13,584         68,037         171,350       (103,313)      39.7%

Insurance 1,486           5,991           12,360         (6,369)          48.5%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 31,237         123,749       626,210       (502,461)     19.8%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -                10,076         58,900         (48,824)        17.1%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 49,719         190,550       963,475       (772,925)     19.8%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 42,072         187,487       196,550       (9,063)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer from (to) Other Funds

Transfer from (to) Capital (25,000)        (100,000)      (300,000)      200,000       33.3%

   TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds (25,000)        (100,000)     (300,000)     200,000       33.3%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (25,000)        (100,000)     (300,000)     200,000       33.3%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $17,072       $87,487       ($103,450)   $190,937     

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 347,868       

ENDING FUND BALANCE $435,355     

Operating Capital Fund Balance 280,351       

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 145,004       

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 10,000         

Total Fund Balance $435,355     

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Parks & Grounds Fund

For the One Month and Four Months Ended April 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 12 of 90



 Month of 

Apr 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance Over 

(Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(33.3% YTD)

REVENUES

Recreation Center Service Fees $148,079     $585,989     $1,804,450    ($1,218,461)    32.5%

Fee Based Programming 10,894          31,432          60,000           (28,568)           52.4%

MRRC Concession Sales 109               235               1,000             (765)                 23.5%

Falcon Freedom Days Revenue -                -                20,000           (20,000)            - 

Billing Fees 919               3,089            17,850           (14,761)           17.3%

Advertising Fees 35                 455               3,800             (3,345)              12.0%

Miscellaneous Income -                3,406            -                 3,406                - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 160,035       624,606       1,907,100      (1,282,494)      32.8%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -                1,762            6,700             (4,938)              26.3%

Customer Billing Services 3,041            10,682          18,600           (7,918)              57.4%

Engineering/Consulting 1,350            4,260            5,000             (740)                 85.2%

Legal -                -                5,000             (5,000)               - 

Personnel Expenses 76,056          269,126       970,200         (701,074)         27.7%

General Operations - Admin 7,823            26,802          48,350           (21,548)           55.4%

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 88,270          312,631       1,053,850      (741,219)         29.7%

Operating Expense

Programming Supplies 6,869            20,390          63,500           (43,110)           32.1%

Building Maint. 4,809            35,169          161,450         (126,281)         21.8%

Grounds Maint. -                -                2,000             (2,000)               - 

Pool Maint. 2,811            8,187            54,050           (45,863)           15.1%

MRRC Security 293               1,131            4,000             (2,869)              28.3%

MR Community Events 279               1,534            15,000           (13,466)           10.2%

Falcon Freedom Days Expenses -                -                50,000           (50,000)            - 

Utilities 13,192          66,886          182,100         (115,214)         36.7%

Insurance 2,528            10,192          18,823           (8,631)              54.1%

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 80                 289               5,500             (5,211)              5.3%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 31,856          165,076       596,423         (431,347)         27.7%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -                10,076          -                 10,076              - 

   TOTAL EXPENSES 120,127       487,782       1,650,273      (1,162,491)      29.6%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 39,908          136,824       256,827         (120,003)         53.3%

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer from (to) Other Funds

Transfer from (to) Capital (16,667)        (66,667)        (200,000)        133,333           33.3%

Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (4,167)          (16,667)        (50,000)          33,333             33.3%

   TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds (20,834)        (83,334)        (250,000)        166,666           33.3%

Emergency Reserves

Emergency Reserve (5%) 4,167            16,667          50,000           (33,333)           33.3%

   TOTAL Emergency Reserves 4,167            16,667          50,000           (33,333)           33.3%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (16,667)        (66,667)        (200,000)        133,333           33.3%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $23,241       $70,157       $56,827         $13,330           123.5%

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 401,338       

ENDING FUND BALANCE $471,495     

Operating Capital Fund Balance 335,250       

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 126,245       

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 10,000          

Total Fund Balance $471,495     

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Recreation Center Fund

For the One Month and Four Months Ended April 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 13 of 90



 Month of Apr 

2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 2021 

Budget 

 Variance Over 

(Under) Budget 

% of Budget 

(33.3% YTD)

REVENUES

Interest Income $227                  $1,116                      -                              $1,116                       - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 227                    1,116                        -                              1,116                         - 

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Legal -                     -                             10,000                        (10,000)                      - 

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense -                     -                             10,000                        (10,000)                      - 

Capital Expense - Other

Build-Out CIP & Funding Plan 5,482                 90,478                      100,000                      (9,522)                       90.5%

District Office Yard & Shop -                     -                             1,300,000                  (1,300,000)                 - 

Imp/Mtc Drainage Channels/Ponds -                     -                             230,000                      (230,000)                    - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense - Other 5,482                 90,478                      1,630,000                  (1,539,522)                5.6%

Capital Expense P&G Fund 15

3rd Const & Acq-Winding Walk -                     -                             300,000                      (300,000)                    - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense P&G Fund 15 -                     -                             300,000                      (300,000)                    - 

Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16

MRRC Expansion -                     -                             50,000                        (50,000)                      - 

MRRC #2 Rainbow Bridge Dr. -                     -                             100,000                      (100,000)                    - 

Lobby Remodel -                     -                             200,000                      (200,000)                    - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16 -                     -                             350,000                      (350,000)                    - 

Capital Expense Water Fund 40

Well Site #6 3,335                 -                             -                              -                              - 

Guthrie Well Area B & Line Exp -                     113                            50,000                        (49,888)                     0.2%

Expand Filter Plant & Bldg -                     -                             830,000                      (830,000)                    - 

ACGC Weir Improvements -                     1,744                        15,000                        (13,256)                     11.6%

Well Site No. 5 ,7 & 8 196,914             1,901,297                 4,400,000                  (2,498,703)                43.2%

Eastonville Raw Water Pipeline 28,143               401,283                    450,000                      (48,717)                     89.2%

   TOTAL Capital Expense Water Fund 40 228,392             2,304,436                 6,115,000                  (3,810,564)                37.7%

Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50

Lift Station 2020 Improvements -                     -                             30,000                        (30,000)                      - 

Woodmen Hills Sewer Bypass 26,857               789,538                    710,000                      79,538                      111.2%

WH Sewer Bypass Phase 2 & 3 -                     -                             500,000                      (500,000)                    - 

Mid-Point Injection Station -                     -                             20,000                        (20,000)                      - 

2021 Lift Station Improvements -                     -                             35,000                        (35,000)                      - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50 26,857               789,538                    1,295,000                  (505,462)                   61.0%

Developer Reimbursements -                     -                             750,000                      (750,000)                    - 

   TOTAL EXPENSES 260,730             3,184,453                 10,450,000                (7,265,547)                30.5%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (260,503)            (3,183,336)                (10,450,000)               7,266,664                 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer from (to) MRMD -                     -                             750,000                      (750,000)                    - 

Transfer from (to) P&G Fund 25,000               100,000                    300,000                      (200,000)                   33.3%

Transfer from (to) Rec Fund 16,667               66,667                      200,000                      (133,333)                   33.3%

Transfer from (to) Water Fund 166,667             666,667                    2,000,000                  (1,333,333)                33.3%

Transfer from (to) Sewer Fund 65,417               261,667                    785,000                      (523,333)                   33.3%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) 273,751             1,095,001                 4,035,000                  (2,939,999)                27.1%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $13,248             ($2,088,336)             ($6,415,000)               $4,326,664               

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 7,538,868                 

ENDING FUND BALANCE $5,450,532               

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Capital Fund

For the One Month and Four Months Ended April 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 14 of 90



 Month of 

Apr 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance Over 

(Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(33.3% YTD)

REVENUES

Water Service Fees - Res. $177,280     $674,265      $2,541,975   ($1,867,710)   26.5%

Water Service Fees - Comm. 7,774           50,601          142,975        (92,374)           35.4%

Meter Set Fees 6,500           45,150          187,500        (142,350)        24.1%

Irrigation 7,714           30,974          252,550        (221,576)        12.3%

UB - Water Adjustments -               (153)              -                 (153)                 - 

IGA Shared Water Cost Reimb. -               -                 25,000          (25,000)            - 

Billing Fees 919              3,089             17,850          (14,761)           17.3%

Miscellaneous Income -               4,991             -                 4,991               - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 200,186       808,917        3,167,850     (2,358,933)     25.5%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -               2,409             9,000             (6,591)             26.8%

Customer Billing Services 4,114           14,452          45,000          (30,548)           32.1%

Engineering/Consulting 6,260           20,708          50,000          (29,292)           41.4%

Legal 1,122           3,614             20,000          (16,387)           18.1%

Personnel Expenses 33,647         122,561        576,825        (454,264)        21.2%

General Operations - Admin 5,867           14,288          25,800          (11,512)           55.4%

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 51,010         178,031        726,625        (548,594)        24.5%

Operating Expense

Water Operations General 4,437           13,038          112,785        (99,747)           11.6%

Raw Water Operations 237              4,934             53,650          (48,716)           9.2%

Water Treatment Operations 8,787           13,939          65,300          (51,361)           21.3%

Non-Potable Water Operations 3,711           5,711             46,500          (40,789)           12.3%

Utilities 33,708         140,938        499,700        (358,762)        28.2%

Insurance 3,457           14,277          65,000          (50,723)           22.0%

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 594              1,964             15,000          (13,036)           13.1%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 97,782         254,957        1,087,710     (832,753)        23.4%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -               40,403          36,500          3,903              110.7%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 148,791       473,391        1,850,835     (1,377,444)     25.6%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 51,394         335,526        1,317,015     (981,489)        25.5%

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Tap Fees Received 90,000         615,500        1,800,000     (1,184,500)     34.2%

Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (90,000)        (369,000)       (1,800,000)    1,431,000       20.5%

Transfer from (to) Capital (166,667)     (666,667)       (2,000,000)    1,333,333       33.3%

Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (24,167)        (96,667)         (290,000)       193,333          33.3%

Transfer from (to) Rate Stabil 3,333           13,333          40,000          (26,667)           33.3%

   TOTAL Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds (187,501)     (503,501)       (2,250,000)    1,746,499       22.4%

Emergency Reserves

Emergency Reserve (5%) 24,167         96,667          290,000        (193,333)        33.3%

Rate Stabilization Reserve (3,333)          (13,333)         (40,000)         26,667            33.3%

   TOTAL Emergency Reserves 20,834         83,334          250,000        (166,666)        33.3%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (166,667)     (420,167)       (2,000,000)    1,579,833       21.0%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($115,273)   ($84,641)       ($682,985)     $598,344        12.4%

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 2,611,484     

ENDING FUND BALANCE $2,526,843   

Operating Capital Fund Balance 1,387,756     

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 812,420        

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 326,667        

Total Fund Balance $2,526,843   

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Water Fund

For the One Month and Four Months Ended April 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 15 of 90



 Month of 

Apr 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance Over 

(Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(33.3% YTD)

REVENUES

Sewer Fees - Res. $140,697     $557,734       $1,718,350   ($1,160,616)   32.5%

Sewer Fees - Comm. 2,533            9,258             35,000           (25,742)           26.5%

Sterling Ranch Revenue -                -                 1,251,175     (1,251,175)       - 

IGA Shared Sewer Cost Reimb. -                -                 103,000         (103,000)          - 

Billing Fees 919               3,089             17,850           (14,761)           17.3%

Interest Income 16                 74                   -                 74                     - 

Miscellaneous Income -                4,334             -                 4,334                - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 144,164       574,489         3,125,375     (2,550,886)     18.4%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -                1,712             9,000             (7,288)              19.0%

Customer Billing Services 2,981            10,472           42,000           (31,528)           24.9%

Engineering/Consulting 20,519         50,597           75,000           (24,403)           67.5%

Legal 37,223         326,157         170,000         156,157          191.9%

Personnel Expenses 37,634         122,900         536,525         (413,625)         22.9%

General Operations - Admin 3,892            17,160           27,050           (9,890)              63.4%

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 102,249       528,997         859,575         (330,578)         61.5%

Operating Expense

Sewer Operations 15,107         52,322           451,900         (399,578)         11.6%

Lift Station Operations 12,136         48,626           195,100         (146,474)         24.9%

Lift Station Operations-Shared 31,216         57,798           49,300           8,498               117.2%

Utilities 313               1,501             5,400             (3,899)              27.8%

Insurance 2,456            9,901             50,000           (40,099)           19.8%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 62,053         173,995         768,700         (594,705)         22.6%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -                10,076           36,500           (26,424)           27.6%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 164,302       713,068         1,664,775     (951,707)         42.8%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (20,138)        (138,579)       1,460,600     (1,599,179)     

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Tap Fees Received 90,000         615,500         1,700,000     (1,084,500)      36.2%

Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (90,000)        (369,000)       (1,700,000)    1,331,000       21.7%

Transfer from (to) Capital (65,417)        (261,667)       (785,000)       523,333          33.3%

Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (18,750)        (75,000)          (225,000)       150,000          33.3%

Transfer from (to) Emer. ($2) (5,972)          (23,698)          (72,048)          48,350             32.9%

Transfer from (to) Rate Stabil 2,083            8,333             25,000           (16,667)           33.3%

   TOTAL Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds (88,056)        (105,532)       (1,057,048)    951,516          10.0%

Emergency Reserves

Emergency Reserve (5%) 18,750         75,000           225,000         (150,000)         33.3%

Emergency Reserve ($2) - Sewer 5,972            23,698           72,048           (48,350)           32.9%

Rate Stabilization Reserve (2,083)          (8,333)            (25,000)          16,667             33.3%

   TOTAL Emergency Reserves 22,639         90,365           272,048         (181,683)         33.2%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (65,417)        (15,167)         (785,000)       769,833          1.9%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($85,555)      ($153,746)     $675,600      ($829,346)      

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 1,497,791     

ENDING FUND BALANCE $1,344,045   

Operating Capital Fund Balance 21,576           

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 636,804         

Sewer Reserve Fund Balance $2 353,998         

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 331,667         

Total Fund Balance $1,344,045   

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Sewer Fund

For the One Month and Four Months Ended April 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 16 of 90



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

2021 May Tap Report

Counts Date

Tap 

Receipt 

No. Service Address Filing # Lot # Builder Tap Amt Paid

Meter Amt 

Paid Check No. Monthly Totals

73. 5/7/2021 3315 9823 Marble Canyon Way Stonebridge 4 5 Covington Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire #210506188357

74. 5/18/2021 3317 12839 Morning Creek Lane Windingwalk 2 29 Reunion Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire #210518057003

75. 5/19/2021 3316 12740 Enclave Scenic Drive Stonebridge 4 66 Covington Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire #210518125617

76. 5/21/2021 3318 9733 Winding Bend Lane Windingwalk 2 17 Reunion Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire #210520098290 4 May

Page 17 of 90



Date Invoice # Vendor Scheduled Payment Type Payment Amount

5/20/2021 AAJ005878 All American Sports ePayment 2,800.00$                         

5/20/2021 18039 American Portable Services Inc. ePayment 279.00$                            

5/20/2021 85294 Aqueous Solution Inc. Check 2,801.15$                         

5/20/2021 1429931 Badger Meter Check 9,500.00$                         

5/20/2021 4233 BailOut Window Cleaning Check 30.00$                               

5/20/2021 05/13-06/12/21 CenturyLink - FP & LS Check 337.08$                            

5/20/2021 05/07-06/06/21 Comcast - MRRC Check 325.08$                            

5/20/2021 05/15-06/14/2021 Comcast - Office Check 412.16$                            

5/20/2021 04/09/21-05/05/21 CSU Colorado Springs Utilities Check 2,017.89$                         

5/20/2021 Acct 37064-Rivera Customer Refunds Check 186.09$                            

5/20/2021 43021 El Paso County Public Health Check 294.00$                            

5/20/2021 9871110343 Grainger Check 2,064.78$                         

5/20/2021 9871484755 Grainger Check 44.03$                               

5/20/2021 9893873050 Grainger Check 239.35$                            

5/20/2021 21801 HelloSpoke Check 932.89$                            

5/20/2021 90010 Jan-Pro of Southern Colorado Check 255.00$                            

5/20/2021 03/21/21-04/20/21 John Deere Financial Check 154.84$                            

5/20/2021 35874303 Johnson Controls Security Solutions Check 950.00$                            

5/20/2021 INV16-21171 Morning Star Elevator, LLC Vendor Direct 505.00$                            

5/20/2021 431092 Mug-A-Bug Pest Control Check 62.00$                               

5/20/2021 431935 Mug-A-Bug Pest Control Check 246.00$                            

5/20/2021 04/01-05/01/21 MVEA Check 58,452.97$                       

5/20/2021 3666-117158 O'Reilly Automotive Vendor Direct 19.99$                               

5/20/2021 2607140-00 Rampart Supply Inc. Vendor Direct 159.83$                            

5/20/2021 8098710 TIAA Commercial Finance, Inc ePayment 299.35$                            

5/20/2021 184239 Treatment Technology Check 1,025.00$                         

5/20/2021 221040959 Utility Notification Center of Colorado Check 572.88$                            

5/20/2021 9879011534 Verizon Wireless Check 249.78$                            

5/20/2021 9878583553 Verizon Wireless Check 308.52$                            

5/20/2021 6666760-2528-9 Waste Management of Colorado Springs Vendor Direct 229.68$                            

5/20/2021 6666758-2528-3 Waste Management of Colorado Springs Vendor Direct 112.27$                            

5/20/2021 6666759-2528-1 Waste Management of Colorado Springs Vendor Direct 132.83$                            

6/7/2021 6/7/2021 Denver Auto Company Check 27,025.00$                       

Total Invoices 32 Total Payment Amount 113,024.44$                     

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Vendor Check Register Report
Interim Payments to Ratify

Page 18 of 90



 

   

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
Water, Wastewater, Parks and Recreation 
11886 Stapleton Dr, Falcon, CO 80831 
719-495-6567, Fax 719-495-3349 

 

 
DATE: May 20, 2021 
 
TO:  MSMD Board of Directors 
 
RE:  Finance Committee Report 
 
On May 20, 2021 the Board’s Finance Committee (Directors Gabrielski and Sauer) met 
with Jim Nikkel, General Manager. Following is a summary of the meeting: 
 

 Discussion regarding how to proceed with the payment request from GTL for the 
3rd Acquisition Winding Walk Payment. MSMD requested to hold off on payment 
of this until more is understood in regards to the Cherokee Arbitration payment 
obligation. 
 

 The Finance Committee approved interim MSMD payments in the amount of 
$85,999.44 and directed staff to put these on the Board’s June agenda for 
ratification. 

 

 
Submitted by: 

 

___________________________________ 
Milton B. Gabrielski, Finance Committee Chair 

Page 19 of 90



June 9th, 2021 Recreation Board Report  

 

Usage Numbers May 1, 2021 – May 31, 2021 

Total Attendance – 9918 
Group Ex – 814 participants. Of those we received $434.00 from non-members 
Childcare attendance - 287 

Revenue collected - $11,313.00 

 

 

Pulse Check:  

 Visitations to the recreation center have increased in May. Schools let out and the 
younger age group has begun to fill up the facility. Summer hiring has gone well as we are 
prepared for the 8-10 week rush we experience in the summer.  

 Youth outdoor soccer is in full swing with over 140 participants. We are utilizing fairway 
heights park and practice Monday – Thursday and have games on Saturday. Youth baseball 
registration is open, and our plan is to use Windingwalk Park as we assume management of the 
park mid-June. Flag football will follow baseball for our next outdoor sport.  

 The outdoor pool opened on Saturday, May 29th with our summer kickoff Luau. We had 
3 food trucks, a photo booth, an inflatable water slide, and carnival style games for the 
community. The luau went well from 11-3 and then we received over an inch of hail at 3:15pm. 
The outdoor heater has been preforming well and maintaining water temperature throughout the 
inclement weather. The hail destroyed the 15-year-old white chairs at the outdoor pool and we 
have just ordered new weather proof chairs to replace the broken ones. 

 We have filled the recreation administrative manager position with Rachel Blamey from 
the MSMD main office. We are excited to have her on the recreation side and will be 
streamlining our admin processes.  

 Falcon Freedom Days fireworks contract has been executed and everything is on pace for 
a great fireworks show. Sponsor letters have been going out and we expect to raise a similar 
amount as we did in 2020.  

 We expect the next two months to be busy with general facility usage and we are 
prepared to handle the influx in usage.  

  

 

Page 20 of 90



MSMD Operations Report for May 2021 
 

During the month of May, the district brought well site #5 on-line.  A few lingering 

details are being sorted out with plans for well #5 to be in production in time for peak demand.  

LFH-1 well pull and replace is in the works with an expected four-to-six-week lead time.  The 

well will be removed, video inspected, cleaned, and a new motor installed.  The raw water 

bypass has been approved, contractor has been selected, and parts are on order.  Chemical 

feed pumps and containers have been ordered.  Water operations completed the monthly Bac-

T sampling per CDPHE monitoring requirements.  The Consumer Confidence Report has been 

completed with notice of its availability and a link to its website location included on the May 

customer invoices that went out June 1st.  This is a change from the past that was instituted to 

save on the cost of mailing the report.  Monthly water meter reads were collected on May 25th.  

Staff have also been busy installing new residential water meters and spending several hours 

completing water and sewer locates and entering the required response.  New water service 

inspections and locate requests have increased which has also kept staff busy.  The service 

truck and crane were used to repair a damaged hydrant and pull a submersible pump used to 

pump water from the creek to the golf course pond.   

Parks and drainage had a couple more storms to work through with a major storm 

occurring over Memorial Day weekend.  Weekly pond inspections were completed, removing 

trash, and clearing the drain as needed.  Parks and Drainage staff are maintaining consistent 

contact with Oolganik regarding damaged irrigation repairs.  Meridian Ranch irrigation is being 

pressured up slowly allowing crew to make repairs as they progress through the zones including 

repairing a booster pump at one of the community parks.  Longview Park rehab continues with 

soil amendments and seeding completed.  A few incidents of fence tampering have occurred 

but corrected quickly.  Graffiti was removed under the Londonderry bridge near the rec center.  

A new part-time employee has started in a labor position bringing the total in Parks and 

Drainage to four people. 

Staff performed weekly infiltration gallery inspections and recorded water level logging 

data.  Monthly infiltration gallery flow rate inspects were delayed to the end of the month as 

crew battled a wetter month.  Area #5 was in overflow throughout May.   

Wastewater operations completed weekly composite sampling and drop off to 

Cherokee for testing.  Weekly Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) and Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) samples 

were collected along with weekly sewer flow meter inspections.  Bar screen replacement still 

on track for July.  The sewer force main was tapped and ready for the next step in the new 

retractable flow meter installation. The sewer bypass line splitting manhole remaining items are 

pending the contractor availability.  Sterling Ranch continues installing the sewer flow sampler 

and soon will be sending flow.   

 

  

Page 21 of 90



 

Upcoming or continued water tasks: 

• Well #5 nearing initial startup first week in May (completed, pending final sampling) 

• LFH-9 replacement (completed and pumping @ 85 gpm) 

• Latigo, LFH-#2 onsite, and LFH-#2 Guthrie wells, completing level sensor install 

• Monthly water sampling per state regulations  

• Monthly meter reading (completed 5-25-21) 

 

Upcoming or continued parks and drainage: 

• Continue irrigation repairs/testing through winter (in progress) 

• Annual backflow testing scheduled for June 

• Charging mainline late April, early May 

• Continue fence repairs (in progress) 

• Mulch/rock replacement in planter beds (in progress) 

 

Upcoming or continued wastewater tasks: 

• Sewer force main air vac maintenance/vault inspections (in progress) 

• Sewer force main flow meter replacement (line tapped, awaiting install) 

• Lift station bar screen repair (parts ordered) 

• Infiltration pit maintenance (pending weather, in progress) 

• Infiltration pit logger installs (2) (pending weather, in progress) 

• Begin recruitment for vacant wastewater position (in progress) 

 

Page 22 of 90



Page 23 of 90



Page 24 of 90



Page 25 of 90



Page 26 of 90



Page 27 of 90



Page 28 of 90



Page 29 of 90



Page 30 of 90



Page 31 of 90



Page 32 of 90



Page 33 of 90



Page 34 of 90



Page 35 of 90



Page 36 of 90



Page 37 of 90



Page 38 of 90



Page 39 of 90



Page 40 of 90



Page 41 of 90



Page 42 of 90



Page 43 of 90



Page 44 of 90



Page 45 of 90



Page 46 of 90



Page 47 of 90



Page 48 of 90



Page 49 of 90



Page 50 of 90



Page 51 of 90



Page 52 of 90



Page 53 of 90



Page 54 of 90



Page 55 of 90



Page 56 of 90



Page 57 of 90



Page 58 of 90



Page 59 of 90



Page 60 of 90



Page 61 of 90



Page 62 of 90



Page 63 of 90



Page 64 of 90



Page 65 of 90



Page 66 of 90



Page 67 of 90



Page 68 of 90



Page 69 of 90



Page 70 of 90



Page 71 of 90



Page 72 of 90



Page 73 of 90



Page 74 of 90



Page 75 of 90



Page 76 of 90



Page 77 of 90



Page 78 of 90



Page 79 of 90



Page 80 of 90



Page 81 of 90



Page 82 of 90



Page 83 of 90



Page 84 of 90



Page 85 of 90



Page 86 of 90



PROJECT   PROPOSAL   

  
To: Jim   Nikkel,   Meridian   Service   Metropolitan   District     
From: Turn   Corps   
Date: May   27,   2021   
Re: Proposal   for   Community   Relations   +   Communication   Services   

  
Thank   you   for   the   opportunity   to   submit   a   proposal   to   help   Meridian   Service   Metropolitan   
District   connect   with   and   engage   constituents   in   a   dialogue   about   the   upcoming   increases   in   
both   the   mill   levy   and   residential   fees.   Opening   up   a   conversation   about   these   realities   and   
allowing   residents   to   understand   the   current   situation   will   demonstrate   an   authentic   and   
transparent   process,   leading   to   more   trust   and   credibility   prior   to   these   changes   taking   place.   

  
We   understand   that   the   recent   legal   decision,   which   precipitated   the   need   for   a   new   10   mill   
increment,   is   not   widely   known.   Although   the   increase   will   not   occur   for   another   six   months,   
now   is   the   time   to   begin   planning   for   and   managing   a   strategic   public   engagement   process.   
Our   role   will   be   to   develop   a   strategic   plan,   clear   messaging,   and   recommended   tactics   to   
help   the   community   understand   and   accept   Meridian’s   decision   to   raise   property   taxes   and   
fees.   We   will   build   a   steady   cadence   of   communication   between   now   and   December   so   that   
the   challenges,   impacts,   and   proposed   solution(s)   are   understood   by   the   community.   Below   
you   will   find   our   recommendations   organized   as   a   menu   of   options   that   will   provide   some   
flexibility   given   schedules,   budget,   and   any   other   factors   that   may   influence   this   plan.      
  

RECOMMENDED   APPROACH     

Our   approach   is   based   on   a   combined   35+   years   of   experience   designing   and   implementing   
successful   public   engagement   and   community   relations   campaigns   to   engage   constituents   in   
complex   or   controversial   projects,   policies,   or   ballot   initiatives   that   impact   them.   We   work   to   
create   clear   and   compelling   messages   that   are   relevant   and   will   resonate   with   the   target   
audience,   and   influence   the   dialogue.     

  
Given   that   the   community   is   unaware   of   the   recent   history   and   ultimate   legal   outcome   
between   Meridian   Services   Metro   District   and   Cherokee   Metropolitan   District,   the   primary   
goal   is   to   reach   the   greatest   number   of   constituents   early   to   ensure   they   are   not   caught   by   
surprise.   We   need   to   strike   a   balance   of   transparency   and   responsiveness   within   the   confines   
of   what’s   realistic   and   practical,   while   giving   them   ample   time   to   ask   questions,   verify   

TURNCORPS.COM                PAGE   1   Page 87 of 90



PROJECT   PROPOSAL   

  
information,   and   come   to   an   understanding   about   the   costs/benefits   to   them   personally   and   
to   the   community   at   large.     

  
If   you   decide   to   move   forward   with   us,   we’ll   work   with   you   to   develop   a   plan   and   list   of   
tactics,   but   below   is   a   general   framework   to   help   you   begin   to   think   through   a   strategic   
approach.   We   would   first   meet   with   you   to   fully   understand   the   history,   detailed   landscape,   
resources,   and   tools   available   in   order   to   determine   the   best   forward   strategy.   The   tactics   
below   are   not   all-encompassing;   it’s   a   recommended   baseline   that   we   may   build   upon   once   
we   have   a   better   understanding   of   the   situation.   

  
The   monthly   retainer   of   $5,000   is   based   on   our   estimated   scope   of   work   and   is   subject   to   
change   once   we   have   a   better   idea   of   the   exact   needs   and   timeline.     

  

*The   costs   for   design,   printing,   mailing,   and   advertising   are   not   included,   but   estimates   will   be   
prepared   for   your   approval   before   any   vendors   are   selected   

  

TURNCORPS.COM                PAGE   2   

TACTICAL   RECOMMENDATIONS    FEES   

● Landscape   analysis   to   inform   strategic   plan,   messaging   and   tactics   
● Digital   survey   to   serve   as   a   key   communication   tool,   gauge   awareness   and   

inform   strategy      
● Communication   plan   to   include   a   one-page   key   messaging   framework   and   a   

timeline   for   specific   recommended   tactics   such   as   website   content,   FAQs,   PPT   
deck   for   presentations,   email,   flyers,   and   content   for   Facebook   

● Ongoing   development   of   new   content   for   all   the   recommended   tactics   in   the   
plan*     

● Organize   and   promote   public   meetings   /   Town   Hall(s)   that   can   be   recorded   and   
shared   to   the   broader   community   after   the   event     

● Paid   ads   in   local   papers   and/or   their   corresponding   Facebook   pages   (the   cost   of   
advertising   can   be   fairly   cost-efficient   and   reaches   an   older   audience   that   may   
not   be   engaged   on   social   media;   paid   advertising   would   be   used   to   promote   
meetings   and   events)*     

● Bill   inserts,   postcards   or   letters   mailed   to   households   informing   them   of   news,  
the   survey,   and/or   community   meeting(s),   etc.*   

$5,000/mo.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$TBD    
 
 
 

$TBD    

Page 88 of 90



PROJECT   PROPOSAL   

  
OUR   TEAM     

Turn  Corps  was  started  in  2016  by  Bryan  Blakely  and  Sara  O’Keefe,  who  recognized  a  gap  in                                   
the  market.  There  was  no  one  with  their  unique  combination  of  expertise  in  public                             
affairs/community  relations,  political  operations,  and  communications  strategies  serving  the                   
specific  needs  of  local  government  entities  and  private  companies  navigating  local                       
government  processes.  They  launched  Turn  Corps  to  serve  this  niche  in  a  nimble  and  creative                               
way.  As  Colorado  natives,  and  coming  from  families  with  deep  political  and  public  service                             
backgrounds,  they  have  worked  and  have  contacts  throughout  the  state,  and  regionally,  as                           
well   as   access   to   skilled   and   trusted   freelancers   and   subcontractors.   

  
Bryan   Blakely,     principal   and   campaign/political   and   community   mobilization   strategist   

Bryan   Blakely   has   18   years   of   experience   in   local   government   advocacy   and   public   engagement   
across   Colorado.   He   has   run   political   campaigns   and   organized   small   and   large   coalitions   at   the   local   
and   state   level   on   policies,   legislation,   and   highly   visible   development   and   infrastructure   projects.   
Some   of   the   issues   he’s   focused   on   include:   

land   development   |   land   conservation   |   water   |   infrastructure   |   property   +   sales   taxes   |   disruptive   
companies   +   industries   |   energy   |   transportation   |   natural   resources   |   tax   increment   financing   |   
economic   development   |   new   technologies   

His   clients   rely   on   him   to   provide   critical   relationships,   effective   political   strategies   and   public   
engagement   tactics   to   drive   positive   outcomes.   

  
Sara   O’Keefe,     principal   and   communications/community   relations   strategist     

Sara   O’Keefe   has   18   years   of   experience   developing   and   executing   communication   and   outreach   
strategies   that   engage   communities   and   stakeholders   in   critical   social,   economic,   and   policy   
discussions   and   decisions.   Over   the   course   of   her   career,   she’s   led   strategic   marketing   /   
communications   campaigns   and   public   engagement   efforts   focused   on   the   following   issues:   

education   |   public   +   environmental   health   |   transportation   |   TABOR   +   Gallagher   initiatives   
eminent   domain   +   public   financing   |   public-private   development   |   water   +   natural   resources   
energy   +   alternative   fuels   |   early   childhood   development   |   health   care   policy   +   financing     

Sara   is   an   expert   in   positing   strategy   and   messaging   prioritization   and   has   led   such   efforts   for   
several   statewide,   multimillion-dollar   education   campaigns.     

TURNCORPS.COM                PAGE   3   Page 89 of 90



 

 
 

Date:  May 22, 2021 

To: Jim Nikkel 
 District Manager, Meridian Service Metropolitan District 
 
From: Sean Walsh 

Re: Proposed Scope of Work 

 

Per your request for a proposed scope of work for consulting services, please consider 
the below draft. Once you have had a chance to read it, we can get on the phone again 
soon and discuss changes, answer your questions and/or go over next steps. 

Scope: 

• Consult and strategize with the District Manager, individual board members and 
District consultants on the problem MSMD is facing; 

• Draft and execute a five-month engagement and communications plan for 
MSMD;  

• Provide weekly summaries of my work progress in writing;  
• Attend MSMD board meetings, if needed;  
• Provide general communications and strategic guidance to MSMD. 

 

Fee: 

I agree to perform the above services form June 1st through October 31st for $4,400 per 
month ($22,000) plus reimbursement for reasonable expenses. I agree to get prior 
written approval for any expense over $50. 

Page 90 of 90


